
Property / Regeneration Briefing  
 

Dear Member, 
 

You are invited to attend the meeting of the Property / Regeneration Briefing to be held 
as follows for the transaction of the business indicated. 
Tom Stannard 

Chief Executive  

 
DATE: Monday, 27 February 2023 

 
TIME:  3.00 pm 

 
VENUE: Salford Suite, Salford Civic Centre, Chorley Road, Swinton 

 
In accordance with ‘The Openness of Local Government Bodies Regulations 
2014,’ the press and public have the right to film, video, photograph or record 

this meeting.  
 

AGENDA 

 
1   Apologies for absence  

 

 

2   Declarations of interest  

 

 

3   Items for Decision - Part 1 (Open to the Public)  

 

 

3a Peel Park Pavilion, Little Hulton  
 

(Pages 3 - 15) 

4   Public Briefing Items  

 

The following items are for the primary purpose of providing members 

of the public with all relevant information on the respective matters, 
other than those elements, which in accordance with the relevant 
sections of the Local Government Act 1972, remain confidential and 

require that any arising decision is taken in Part 2 of the agenda. 
 

 

4a Former St. Joseph's RC Church and Presbytery, Ordsall (also see 
item 6a)  
 

(Pages 16 - 23) 

4b Land at Hanover Court, Broughton (also see item 6b)  
 

(Pages 24 - 33) 

5   Exclusion of the Public  

 

 

6   Items for Decision - Part 2 (Closed to the Public)  

 

 

6a Former St. Joseph's RC Church and Presbytery, Ordsall  

 

(Pages 34 - 36) 

6b Land at Hanover Court, Broughton  
 

(Pages 37 - 39) 

Public Document Pack



 

7   Any other business  

 

 

 
Contact Officer: Tel No: 0161 793 3013 
Mike Relph, Senior Democratic Services Advisor E-Mail: mike.relph@salford.gov.uk 



   
PART 1  

 
ITEM NO.  
 

  

 

REPORT OF THE STRATEGIC DIRECTOR PLACE  
 

 

TO  
 

PROPERTY AND REGENERATION ON  

27TH FEBRUARY 2023 FOR DECISION 
  

 

TITLE:  Peel Park Pavilion, Little Hulton 
 

 

RECOMMENDATIONS: 
 

That the Deputy City Mayor approves: 
 

 The appointment of the Derwent Development Management Limited (DMML) 

(a company with close links to the Albert Gubay Charitable Foundation 
(AGCF)) to oversee all aspects of the procurement and delivery process in 

delivering the Peel Park Community Pavilion project.  

 The payment of all costs for the works by the Council (currently estimated at 
£720,000 plus VAT). This will include VAT payments with all costs (net of 

VAT) being underwritten by AGCF. 
 

 Following the appointment of the DMML, the Council will enter into a Building 
Contract with the building contractor appointed by DMML to capture the 

works and associated delivery arrangements. 

 An Agreement for Lease that will be entered into between the Council and 
AGCF to oblige AGCF to enter into a 99 year lease of the Peel Park Pavilion 

with the Council following practical completion of the works under the building 
contract for an estimated £720k.  

 The grant of a 99yr lease of the Peel Park Pavilion to AGCF following 
practical completion of the works with AGCF, in turn, granting a sub-lease of 
the premises to the local community association on the same terms and 

conditions. 

 That the Strategic Director of Place in conjunction with the Section 151 officer 

be authorised to agree to any variations to the above approvals on the basis 
that any financial changes are underwritten by AGCF. 

 That the Shared Legal Service be authorised to complete all documentation 
to facilitate the above recommendations. 

 The Council’s partial exemption position will need monitoring by finance 

because of the amount of exempt VAT associated with this arrangement. This 
could mean that other projects in 2023/24 may need to be delayed if they 

have exempt VAT in 2023/24. 

Page 3

Agenda Item 3a



 
Note that the appointment of DMML is also subject to the approval of Procurement 
Board unless the chair of Procurement Board is happy to approve the appointment 

as part of the Property and Regeneration discussions by virtue of his attendance. 
 

 

EXECUTIVE SUMMARY: 
 

The report outlines a proposal from the Albert Gubay Charitable Foundation (AGCF) 
to spend c.£720,000 on improvement works to the Peel Park Pavilion to safeguard 
and enhance the building’s future as a local community asset. 

 
The report sets out how the works will be delivered and seeks Council approval to a 

number of linked matters. This includes: 
 

 The appointment by the Council of The DMML to oversee all aspects of the 

procurement and delivery process. 

 The payment by the Council of all costs for the works. This will include VAT 

payments with all costs (net of VAT) being underwritten by AGCF. 
 

 An Agreement for Lease and building contract will be entered into as part of 

the delivery arrangements.  

 On practical completion of the works, a 99yr lease of the premises will be 

granted to AGCF; with AGCF, in turn, granting a sub-lease of the premises to 
the local community association. 

 AGCF will pay SCC a premium equivalent to the cost of all works (excl VAT) 
on completion of the lease. 
 

The transaction is effectively a cash flow arrangement between the Council and 
AGCF whereby the Council will pay for the works and recoup any expenditure the 

Council makes (excl VAT) on completion of the lease to AGCF. 
 

Financing of expenditure incurred for this project will derive from payment from 
AGCF upon completion of the lease. The project can be included within the Place 

capital programme within the Greenspace and Streetscene budget line and treated 
as a contribution negating the need for Council capital financing. Before any 

expenditure is incurred by the Council for this project, there will need to be 
appropriate and robust financing agreements in place to provide assurance of 
reimbursement from the relevant parties and to also capture any variances in costs 

for the scheme and reciprocal reimbursement.   
 

 
 
 

 
 

 
 
 

 

Page 4



 
BACKGROUND DOCUMENTS:  Plan of the site to be leased (attached) 
 

 
KEY DECISION: YES  
 

 

DETAILS:  
 
1.0 Background 

  
1.1 
 

 
 

 

The Little Hulton Community organisation, supported by Salford CVS, have a 
longstanding ambition to improve the facilities and accommodation at Peel 

Park Pavilion which forms part of Peel Park, Little Hulton. The site and 
building are shown on Plan 1 attached. 

1.2 
 

Initially the group approach the Albert Gubay Charitable Foundation (AGCF) 
requesting some funding support for the project. Through discussions the 

AGCF have very generously agreed to fund the full cost of the works 
currently estimated as amounting to £720,000.  

 
1.3 
 

AGCF and Salford CVS have approached the Council to discuss the ability 
of the Council to support the delivery of the project . Unfortunately, the 

AGCF is unable to pass the £720,000 to the City Council due to limitations 
within its constitution. 
 

1.4 A number of delivery routes were investigated but all but one were 

discounted as not being feasible. The one that appears acceptable to all 
parties is as outlined within the report. 

 
2.0 

 

2.1 
 

Details 

 

The proposal put forward by AGCF, supported by Salford CVS, who are 
supporting the local community group with the proposals, requests that 

Salford City Council agrees to pay for the cost of the project with any costs 
incurred to be underwritten by the AGCF. This is essentially a cashflow 
arrangement between AGCF and the Council as the Council will be 

expending monies on the basis it will get such monies back (less VAT) at a 
later date.  AGCF would manage and oversee the whole works process and 

would wish to appoint a linked Company, DMML, to manage all aspects of 
the project on their behalf. 
 

2.2 The arrangements will require careful management to ensure that the 
Council does not exceed its VAT exemption limits in any particular financial 

year having regard to other projects. The spend will need to span 2 financial 
years to be better managed in the Council’s partial exemption position. 
 

2.3 
 

 

The legal arrangements with AGCF will need to document the works period 
through a Development Agreement/Agreement for Lease and the grant of a 

99 year peppercorn lease of the pavilion upon completion of the works. This 

Page 5



 
 

      

is essentially the same process that was recently approved in relation to the 
Youth Zone Project in Pendleton. The provisionally agreed Heads of Terms 

for the 99 year lease are as detailed below: 
 

Landlord Salford City Council 

Tenant  Albert Gubay Foundation 
Tenant 

Address            
T.B.C 

Premises Clubhouse and immediately adjoining land at Peel Park Pavilion, 
Little Hulton, as shown edged red on the attached Plan1 

Term 99 years from the date of practical completion of the pavilion 
improvement works that are to be undertaken  

Associated 
agreements  

The parties will agree to enter into an Agreement for Lease that 
will document the proposed works and investment into the pavilion 

project . Satisfactory delivery of the project will trigger the 
completion of the 99 yr lease agreement. The Agreement for 
Lease will document all requirements in relation to the 

construction phase of the project. Details to be added once the 
delivery arrangements have been confirmed 

Sub letting  It is understood that the tenant will, on completion of the lease, 
seek to sublease the whole of the premises to a local community 

organisation (Name to be added) who will assume full 
responsibility to the day to day operational management of the 
pavilion. Terms to mirror the head lease (with term to be 

confirmed) 

Statutory 
Renewal 

The lease will be excluded from the provisions of sections 24 to 28 
of the Landlord and Tenant Act 1954. 

Break The Landlord may terminate the agreement in the event that the 
building ceases to be used for community purposes. 

The tenant may terminate the lease at any point if it chooses to do 
so having given 6 months prior notice 

Rent 1 peppercorn if demanded 
Rent Review The peppercorn rent will remain for the duration of the term 

Outgoings The Tenant is to pay all rates, taxes and other outgoings, now or 

hereafter imposed, charged or assessed upon the Premises, 
landlord property tax only excluded. 

Permitted Use The Tenant and any sub tenant are to use the premises for 
community use purposes only. 
The Tenant or sub tenant will obtain, and at all times maintain, all 

necessary registrations from the Council and any other 
appropriate regulatory bodies for the use of the premises for 

community use purposes.  
Access The Tenant shall be permitted to pass and re-pass over any 

access road or un-adopted highway serving the Premises for the 
sole purpose of gaining access to the Premises and shall not 

cause or permit any vehicle to park or load or unload on the said 
access road or highway. 
Rights will be granted to access and to use the car park that is to 

be constructed in the park in conjunction with other parties rights 

Page 6



to use that car park. 

Repairs  
and 

Maintenance 

The Tenant shall maintain the whole of the interior and exterior of 
the pavilion and any other structures erected on the land (both 

now and in the future) in good and substantial repair and condition 
and shall paint all exterior and interior surfaces normally painted 
as often as may be reasonably necessary to the satisfaction of the 

Landlord. 
The Tenant is to be responsible for the maintenance of all 

boundary fencing and gates and the upkeep and maintenance of 
all grassed and landscaped areas within the demised land.  
The Tenant is responsible for all drains, ditches and watercourses 

either upon or under the demised land and for keeping them 
cleansed and free from  blockages.  

Insurance The Landlord will insure the structure of the building against 
damage by fire, explosion and other usual perils and will re-charge 

to the Tenant all monies expended on this insurance.  
The Tenant will insure all other aspects of the building contents, 
operation and use and maintain public liability insurance 

appropriate for the use of the premises for an amount satisfactory 
to the Landlord, currently a minimum of £5,000,000. 

Indemnity The Tenant is to indemnify and keep indemnified the Council 
against all claims for damages compensation and/or costs in 

respect of injury (fatal or otherwise) to any person and/or damage 
loss or inconvenience to property of any person or persons 

caused by or arising out of or incidental to or in any way 
connected with the exercise by the Tenant of the rights hereby 
granted and the Tenant’s occupation of the land. 

Statutory 
compliance    

The Tenant is to comply with any statutory compliance obligations 
(already or in the future to be passed) including but not exclusively 

limited to health & safety, gas and electrical safety, legionella 
control, asbestos management, fire risk assessment and portable 

appliance testing. The Tenant is to submit written evidence of 
statutory compliance, such as copy certificates, if requested by the 
Landlord.  

Alienation The Tenant shall not assign, sub-let or part with possession of the 

whole of or any part of the property without the Councils formal 
consent. 
The Tenant may allow the sub-letting /use of the premises by 

community groups and activities without the need for additional 
Councils approval. 

Other non community uses will first require the Councils consent 
The Council would look to enter into an Service Level Agreement 
with the tenant/sub tenant so that community uses and benefits 

arising from the use of the premises can be captured on an annual 
basis by the Council. Model form of SLA to be agreed 

Alterations The Tenant shall not erect any buildings or structures or fences 
on the land without the prior written consent of the Council, such 

consent not to be unreasonably withheld.  
 

The Tenant will not carry out any structural or external alterations 

Page 7



or alterations to internal layout without prior written Landlords 
consent. Any alterations are to be in accordance with appropriate 

regulations. Any alterations are to be carried out to a good 
standard and evidence of compliance to statutory standards will 

be maintained with copies provided for the Landlord if so required. 
 
The Tenant is not at any time to remove any trees hedges fences 

or gates in or upon the said land and at or before the end of the 
term without the prior written consent of the Landlord. 

Advertisement No sign, placard or advertisement whatsoever shall be fixed or 
placed on the premises or land without the previous written 

consent of the Landlord, consent not to be unreasonably withheld.  
Consents The Tenant shall obtain all necessary consents or approvals 

whether statutory or not in relation to the proposed use or future 
uses or alterations. 

Termination On termination, vacation or expiry of the lease, the Tenant will if 
required remove all signs and Tenants fixtures and fittings and 

furniture and effects and reinstate any alterations or amendments 
made to the premises, making good any damage to the premises 

so caused.  
The Tenant will also leave the premises clean clear and tidy and 
in a good state of repair and decoration.  

Professional 

Fees 
Each party to bear its own costs.    

Other 

c
o
n

d
i

t
i
o

n
s 

1. The Tenant will not do or permit to be done at the existing 

property anything that may be or become a nuisance to any 

neighbours of the demised premises. 

 
2. The Tenant will use its best endeavours to prevent car parking 

which may cause a nuisance or inconvenience to neighbouring 

properties. 

 
3. The Tenant will not permit the sale or consumption of alcohol 

on the said land or any building erected thereon without 

obtaining the previous written consent of the Council. 

 

4. Any other conditions normally included by the Landlord’s legal 

adviser in an agreement of this type. 

 

2.4 Discussions are continuing between AGF, the community organisation and 
the Council regarding the provision of a car park that will serve the pavilion, 
park and wider community. It is estimated that this will cost circa £100,000. 

We understand that the community have £30k to contribute to this but the 
remainder will need to be found. 

The Council are looking at options to assist and this will form the basis of a 
separate report as required. 
 

 

Page 8



2.5 Details of the AGCF and the relationship between the AGCF and DMML are 
detailed below which explained the reasoning as to why AGCF want to use 

them on this project. 
 

 The Albert Gubay Charitable Foundation (AGCF) is a registered 
charity under the Charity Commission (Charity No:  1193970). 

 It’s purpose is to distribute funds to registered charities in England, 
Wales, the Isle of Man and The Republic of Ireland particularly in the 

North West near to the properties that generate the income for the 
grant making funds. 

 It was created by a Trust Deed in 2008 by Albert Gubay and in 2021 
became registered under the Charity Commission for England & 
Wales. During the interim period, the various property arms of the 

company were transferred to the registered charity and are now 
subsidiaries of AGCF. This was to ensure that, in perpetuity,  the 

income generated would be used to distribute to charities, to develop 
more properties so that the size of income for grant making could 
grow and to look at other ways to assist charities e.g. by developing 

buildings that they could use. 

 On 31 March 2021, when Albert Gubay Trustee Limited was 

appointed as trustee of the AGCF, 100% of the shareholding in DDML 
transferred to the Albert Gubay Trustee Limited as trustee of AGCF. 
Legal title to the shareholding in DDML was formally transferred on 26 

January 2022. 

 DDML’s is the development arm of The Albert Gubay Charitable 

Foundation and progresses all new building opportunities for the 
charity. 

 DDML have over the last 6 months and at no cost to the project been 
liaising with Community Little Hulton and the architects and other 
consultants that they appointed to take the designs to the stage they 

are currently at, and so have a thorough knowledge of the designs 
and process that the community have been through.  

 DDML have 20+ years of experience of managing many capital build 
projects.  

 Once the designs have been developed, DDML will ensure that the 

works are put out to tender, so getting the best value price for the 
works. 

 AGCF are providing 100% of the funding for the extension and 
refurbishment of the building which is owned by the Council and so 

there is no cost to Salford City Council for the capital works which will 
significantly improve a community facility in an area with some of the 
highest levels of deprivation. 

 Given the inflationary pressures on capital projects, timing is crucial to 
minimise increased costs – DDML are ready to manage the project as 

soon as the go ahead is given – this means no additional delays and 
associated cost increases that would be incurred if a tender for a 
developer has to be carried out. 

 Discussions are continuing between AGCF, the community 
organisation and the Council regarding the provision of a car park that 

will serve the pavilion, park and wider community. 

Page 9



It is estimated that this will cost c.£100,000. We understand that the 
community have £30k to contribute to this but the remainder will need 

to be found. 

 The Council are looking at options to assist and this will form the 

basis of a separate report as required 
 

2.6 In order to support a direct award to DMML and provide a justifiable reason 

for seeking an exception to Contract Sanding Orders (CSO’s) the proposal  
must meet one or more of the following criteria to satisfy the request for an 

exception to CSO’s.  
It is considered that the case can be made in a number of areas and 
particularly those highlighted in yellow below. Commentary against item is 

set out in red: 
 

 9.13 Exceptions to Contractual Standing Orders   

9.13.1 Exceptions to CSO can only be approved when one or more of the 
following apply;  

• Where goods/services/works are only obtainable from one provider and 
there is no other to allow genuine competition.  Whilst other companies could 

deliver the services that DMML will provide , the use of DMML is a specific 
request from AGCF (for the reasons outlined within the report). Unless this 
request can be accommodated it is likely that the funding support from AGF 

will not be made available 

• The execution of works or the supply of goods or services are controlled by 

a statutory body  
• Delivers Best Value to the Council.  The proposal from AGCF is effectively 
a cash flow arrangement where the Council is certain to recover all its outlay 

back , whatever the cost of said outlay 

• Special education, health or social care contracts, if, it is considered in the 

Council’s interests and to meet its obligations under relevant legislation  
• The execution of works or the supply of goods and services that are 
required so urgently as not to permit compliance with the requirements of 

competition. Accommodating the request from AGCF will assist in the 
delivery of the project timescale wise . That is particularly important at a time 

when construction costs have been rising considerably  

 • Security works where the publication of documents or details in the 
tendering process could prejudice the security of SCC and Salford 

Residents  
• Procurements made through or on behalf of any consortium, local 

authority, statutory or similar body provided that tenders or quotations are 
invited and contracts placed in accordance with national or EU legislation. 
 

2.7 
 

Financing of expenditure incurred for this project will derive from payment 
from AGCF upon completion of the lease. The project can be included within 

the Place capital programme within the Greenspace and Streetscene budget 
line and treated as a contribution negating the need for Council capital 
financing. Before any expenditure is incurred by the Council for this project, 

there will need to be appropriate and robust financing agreements in place to 
provide assurance of reimbursement from the relevant parties and to also 

capture any variances in costs for the scheme and reciprocal 

Page 10



reimbursement.  
  

2.8 
 

Comments from Procurement , Finance and Legal colleagues in their formal  
response section deal with the respective issues associated with the 

proposed transaction and associated matters 
 

2.9  
 

The project is supported by local members who are keen to see an 

accommodation reached with AGCF to secure funding for the project and to 
assist with its early delivery 
 

3.0                       The recommendations, if approved, will allow a substantial investment to be 
secured for community facilities in Little Hulton. The proposal is unusual in 

that it requires the Council to advance monies to fund the costs of the 
monies before getting those monies back. Through the relationship 

established with AGCF and CVS, acting on behalf of the local community, 
the Council will maintain a regular and proactive dialogue with AGCF/CVS in 
relation to the project, its delivery and all associated matters.   

  

 
KEY COUNCIL POLICIES:  Community wellbeing.  Making best use and achieving  

best value of Council Assets. 
 

 
EQUALITY IMPACT ASSESSMENT AND IMPLICATIONS:  The proposal will result 

in a substantial investment in a community used  asset in Little Hulton 
 

 

ASSESSMENT OF RISK:  Low 
 

 

SOURCE OF FUNDING: The Council are being asked to make funding available for 
the proposed works. Whilst the monies (excl VAT) will be retuned it is necessary for 
the monies to be made available through unsupported borrowing. 

 

 
LEGAL IMPLICATIONS:   

Supplied by Laura Gledhill Commercial Legal Team - The value of the works is 
understood to be below the public procurement threshold and therefore a full 
procurement process under the Public Contract Regulations 2015 is not required. 

However the award of a contract needs to be in line with the Council's constitutional 
requirements. It is proposed that the Council enters into a direct arrangement with 

the developer to facilitate the delivery of the works to the Council's pavilion. A direct 
award requires a waiver of the Contract Procurement Rules which must be approved 
by the Procurement Board in line with the Constitution. Exceptions to the Contract 

Procurement Rules need to be evidenced against certain criteria listed at 9.13.1 of 
the Constitution.   

 

Supplied by Deborah Scott Property Legal Team - Section 123 of the Local 
Government Act 1972 enshrines the statutory duty on local authorities to achieve 

Page 11



best value in the context of land disposals. It says that a local authority may dispose 
of land held by it in any manner it wishes providing it is not for a consideration 'less 
than the best that can reasonably be obtained'. It is also Government policy that 

local authorities and other public bodies should dispose of surplus land wherever 
possible.  

   
The onus is on the local authority to be able to demonstrate that in discharging this 
statutory function it has acted properly, rationally and with due regard to its fiduciary 

duty to avoid the risk of challenge and transactions potentially being set aside by the 
Court. This will involve a robust audit trail including valuation evidence.  

   
A council can be found in breach of section 123 if it has “(i) failed to take proper 
advice; (ii) failed to follow proper advice for reasons that cannot be justified; or (iii) 

has followed advice that was so plainly erroneous that in accepting it the local 
authority must have known, or at least ought to have known, that it was acting 

unreasonably. 
 
In this case, the Council has agreed to dispose of the land pursuant to a 99 year 

lease for, essentially, the same cost as the value of the works.  The Council needs 
to be satisfied and be able to justify that this represents the best consideration 

reasonably obtainable for the disposal of the land. 
 

 
FINANCIAL IMPLICATIONS:   

Supplied by Tony Thompstone - Tony Thompstone, Strategic Finance Manager 
(VAT comments) & Paul Guest, Senior Accountant  15/02/2023 

 
As the council does not have an option to tax on the site the VAT costs associated 

with the works will be included in calculation of the council’s partial exemption 

position. To better manage this position, the invoices from the project should be in 2 

financial years. This additional exempt VAT from this project may mean that 

activities in 2023/24 that involve additional exempt VAT may need to be delayed to 

manage the partial exemption position. 

The funding for this project will be underwritten by the Albert Gubay Charitable 

Foundation (AGCF). On completion of the project and the signing of the lease, AGF 

will then release payment to the Council. Before official sign off of this project there 

needs to be appropriate and robust financing agreements in place to ensure that all 

expenditure incurred by the council is protected and that AGF have the necessary 

funds to reimburse the Council its full costs. The project will be included in the Place 

capital programme and treated as a contribution therefore negating the need for 

Council capital financing. 

 

Page 12



PROCUREMENT IMPLICATIONS: 
Supplied by Anthony Hilton - The legal/procurement implications have been set out 
above. In terms of the grounds for approving an exception to CSO’s, the approach 

being proposed with this project in that the work would/could only take place if we 
utilised AGCF’s contracting arm, then under 9.13 of the constitution - Exceptions to 

Contractual Standing Orders, the case would need to be made that the approach 
satisfies the criteria detailed at para 2.6 
 

Any request to seek approval for an exception to Contract Standing Orders (CSO’s) 
must satisfy at least one of the criteria stated within section 9.13 of the Constitution. 

The report aims to justify how and why a direct award to DDML is the most 
appropriate way forward. Any direct award via an exception to CSO’s carries a 
degree of risk under the Public Contract Regulations (PCR’s) as any other would be 

provider may challenge the fact that the opportunity has not been subject to 
competition.  

 
In this instance, it would appear that the funding will only be made available by AGF 
if their contracting arm, DDML, are utilised to undertake the required works, which 

the report aims to use as the justification for a direct award. This request for an 
exception to CSO’s should be presented to Procurement Board.  

 

 
OTHER DIRECTORATES CONSULTED: Environmental Services colleagues have 
been closely involved in discussions relating to this project due to its Park location.  

  

 
CONTACT OFFICER: Peter Openshaw TEL. NO.07766550136 

 

 
WARD(S) TO WHICH REPORT RELATE(S):   Little Hulton 

 

 

Page 13



Gospel Hall

Ram Street

1

Bowling Green

3
0

18

Sports Facility

Play Area

1
6

13

100.3m

2
e

1
e

2

1
a

2
a

1
2

2

R
A

M
 S

T
R

E
E

T

Pavilion

104

102

106
108

1

1
5

94

2

101.8m

101.8m

MANCHESTER ROAD WEST

Club

130
128 100

100.9m

26
9 

to
 2

9
1

268

Shelter

1

70

84

17

STREET GATE

101.2m

15

1
2

32

2
2

101.8m

6
3

S
T
O

C
K

S
F
IE

L
D

 D
R

IV
E

65

90

Works

C
R

O
F

T

41

51

72

73

PEEL PARK PAVILION

RAM STREET

LITTLE HULTON

Property
Information Section

Salford Civic Centre
Chorley Road

Salford
M27 5AW

Plan Ref:
Scale @ A4:
Date:
OS Map Ref:
Area:

1:1250
16/02/2023
SD7104SE

This map is based upon Ordnance Survey material with the permission of
Ordnance Survey on behalf of the Controller of Her Majesty's Stationery
Office © Crown Copyright. Unauthorised reproduction infringes Crown
copyright and may lead to prosecution or civil proceedings. 100019737 2023

Page 14



Gospel Hall

Ram Street

1

Bowling Green

18

Sports Facility

Play Area

1
6

13

100.3m

2
e

1
e

2

1
a

2
a

2

R
A

M
 S

T
R

E
E

T

Pavilion

104

102

106
108

1

1
5

94

2

101.8m

101.8m

MANCHESTER ROAD WEST

Club

130
128 100

100.9m

26
9 

to
 2

9
1

268

Shelter

1

70

84

17

STREET GATE

101.2m

15

1
2

32

2
2

101.8m

6
3

S
T
O

C
K

S
F
IE

L
D

 D
R

IV
E

65

90

Works

C
R

O
F

T

41

51

72

73

PEEL PARK PAVILION

RAM STREET

LITTLE HULTON

Property
Information Section

Salford Civic Centre
Chorley Road

Salford
M27 5AW

Plan Ref:
Scale @ A4:
Date:
OS Map Ref:
Area:

1:1250
16/02/2023
SD7104SE

This map is based upon Ordnance Survey material with the permission of
Ordnance Survey on behalf of the Controller of Her Majesty's Stationery
Office © Crown Copyright. Unauthorised reproduction infringes Crown
copyright and may lead to prosecution or civil proceedings. 100019737 2023

Page 15



 1 

Part 1: Open to the Public – Item No. 

 
 

REPORT OF THE STRATEGIC DIRECTOR PLACE 

 
 

TO THE CITY MAYOR’S REGENERATION BRIEFING  
27th February 2023 

 

TITLE: ACQUISITION OF THE FORMER ST JOSEPH’S RC CHURCH AND 

PRESBYTERY, ORDSALL 

 

RECOMMENDATIONS: 

 
The City Mayor is recommended to: 

 
Note the proposals detailed below on the terms as set out in the body of this report 
and on the detailed terms set out in an accompanying Part 2 report for approval 

elsewhere on the agenda. 
 

1. Approve the acquisition of the former St Joseph’s RC Church and Presbytery, 
Ordsall (“the Site”) on the terms contained in this report. 
 

2. Approve the transfer of an area of existing school playing field to the Roman 
Catholic Diocese under the School Standards and Framework Act 
 

3. Delegate authority to the Strategic Director of Place and the Section 151 
officer to negotiate and finalise the commercial arrangements and all other 

necessary ancillary agreements to allow the completion of the arrangements 
as detailed in this report 
 

4. Authorise the City Solicitor to progress and complete the associated legal 
formalities and the taking of all steps required to give effect to the above 

recommendations 

 

EXECUTIVE SUMMARY: 

 
The Roman Catholic Diocese (“the Diocese”) own the land shown edged red on the 

attached plan at Appendix 1 (“Plan 1”). The land is split between St Joseph’s Primary 
School and St Joseph’s RC Church and Presbytery.  
 

The land shown edged blue on Plan 1 is owned by the Council and is held, under the 
Education Acts, by St Joseph’s School as playing fields. 

 

Page 16

Agenda Item 4a



 2 

St Joseph’s RC Church and Presbytery, shown shaded red on Plan 1 (“the Site”), 
became surplus to Parish needs and the buildings were demolished in 2022. The 
Diocese informed the Council of its intention to dispose of the Site. 

 
Negotiations were entered into with the Diocese associated with the acquisition of the 

Site to support school expansion needs in the Ordsall area. Terms associated with 
the acquisition of the Site have been provisionally agreed with the Diocese. 
 

The acquisition of the Site by the Council will allow the reorientation of the St 
Joseph’s School site (playing fields and school buildings) and will release an area of 

playing field currently held by St Joseph’s (shown shaded green on Plan 1). It is 
proposed that the land shaded green on Plan 1 will be transferred to Primrose Hill 
Primary (to the south of the site) to allow the future expansion of the Primary School.  

 
Originally Primrose Hill Primary was to expand using land at Ryall Avenue, however 

the Ryall Avenue site was reallocated for housing development through Derive, for 
the construction of 41 social rented units which has now been completed. 
 

Acquiring the Church and Presbytery site: 
 

 Will allow the reorientation and expansion of St Joseph’s Primary 

 Will allow the future expansion of Primrose Hill Primary 

 Has allowed the Ryall Avenue site to be reallocated for the development of 41 

social rented units 
 

Children’s Services have been fully engaged throughout discussions with the 
Diocese and are supportive of proposals. 

 
 

BACKGROUND DOCUMENTS: Not applicable 

 

 

KEY DECISION: YES 

 

1.0 BACKGROUND 

 
1.1 The Diocese own the land shown edged red on Plan 1, the site is split 

between St Joseph’s Primary School and St Joseph’s RC Church and 
Presbytery. The land shown edged blue on Plan 1 is owned by the Council 
and is held, under the Education Acts, and is currently used by St Joseph’s 

School as playing fields. 
 

1.2 The Site became surplus to Parish needs and the buildings erected thereon 
were demolished in 2022. The Diocese informed the Council of its intention to 
dispose of the Site. 

 

Page 17



 3 

1.3 Negotiations were entered into with the Diocese associated with the 
acquisition of the Site to support school expansion needs in the Ordsall area.  

 

1.4 The acquisition of the Site by the Council will allow the reorientation of the St 
Joseph’s School site (playing fields and school buildings) and will release an 

area of playing field currently held by St Joseph’s (shown shaded green on 
Plan 1). It is proposed that the land shaded green on Plan 1 will be transferred 
to Primrose Hill Primary (to the south of the site) to allow the future expansion 

of the Primary School.  
 

1.5 Originally Primrose Hill Primary was to expand using land at Ryall Avenue, 
however the Ryall Avenue site was reallocated for housing development 
through Derive, for the construction of 41 social rented units which has now 

been completed. 
 

1.6 The existing footpath running between the two schools is required to be 
diverted / closed as part of the future proposals. The closure/ diversion 
application will be progressed once the Site has been acquired. Feedback 

from footpath organisations has been positive. 
 

1.7 Once the Site has been acquired it is proposed that the Council will create 
playing fields on the land for use by St Joseph’s School.  

 

1.8 Following all transfers, the land shown shaded red on the Plan at Appendix 2 
(“Plan 2”) will be held by the Council for use as playing fields for St Joseph’s 
and the land shown shaded blue on Plan 2 will be held by the Diocese for 

potential future school building expansion/ reorientation. As part of the 
proposals the land shown shaded yellow on Plan 1 will need to be transferred 

to the Diocese by the Council (under the School Standards and Framework 
Act 1998). 

 

1.9 Acquiring the Church and Presbytery site: 
 

 Will allow the reorientation and expansion of St Joseph’s Primary 

 Will allow the expansion of Primrose Hill Primary 

 Has allowed the Ryall Avenue site to be reallocated for the development of 41 
social rented units 

 
1.10 Children’s Services have been fully engaged throughout discussions with the 

Diocese and are supportive of proposals. 

 
2.0 DETAILS 

 
2.1 The land at St Joseph’s (shown shaded red on Plan 1), extends to 1.39 acres 

and comprises the site of the former Church and Presbytery (“the Site”). 

Heads of Terms associated with the acquisition of the site have been 
provisionally agreed as follows: 

 

Seller Salford Roman Catholic Diocesan Trustees Registered 
 

Page 18



 4 

Buyer Salford City Council  

 

Description  All that land shown shaded red on the attached Plan 1 
 

Tenure Freehold 

 

Use Development and construction of playing fields (funded by the 
Council) for the purpose of the adjacent St Joseph’s RC 
Primary School and usage solely for the same for as long as 

they are required for such purposes. In the event the playing 
fields become redundant for school use the Council has 

freedom to use the land for any purpose. 
 

Planning and 
Statutory 

Consents 
 

The Buyer to be responsible for obtaining Planning and other 
Statutory Consents that may be required. 

Services/Condition The Buyer to bear all costs associated with service 

connections and diversions if any.  The Buyer shall accept the 
land in its condition at the date of completion and shall satisfy 

themselves as to the suitability of the site for their proposed 
use.  
 

Other Conditions Any other conditions normally incorporated by the City 

Council in a Transfer of this manner. 
 

Costs Each party to bear its own costs and surveyors fees in 

connection with the transaction.  
 

 
2.2  Full commercial terms are contained in the accompanying Part 2 Report. 

 
3.0     RECOMMENDATION 

 
The City Mayor is recommended to: 
 

Note the proposals detailed below on the terms as set out in the body of this report 
and on the detailed terms set out in an accompanying Part 2 report for approval 

elsewhere on the agenda. 
 

1. Approve the acquisition of the former St Joseph’s RC Church and Presbytery, 

Ordsall on the terms contained in this report. 
 

2. Approve the transfer of an area of existing school playing field to the Roman 
Catholic Diocese under the School Standards and Framework Act 
 

3. Delegate authority to the Strategic Director of Place and the Section 151 
officer to negotiate and finalise the commercial arrangements and all other 

necessary ancillary agreements to allow the completion of the arrangements 
as detailed in this report 

Page 19



 5 

 
4. Authorise the City Solicitor to progress and complete the associated legal 

formalities and the taking of all steps required to give effect to the above 

recommendations 
 

 
 
KEY COUNCIL POLICIES:  

 

 Health and Social Care 

 Education and skills 

 Housing 

 Social impact 
 

 
 
EQUALITY IMPACT ASSESSMENT AND IMPLICATIONS:  

 
There are no specific equality impact matters following from the proposals contained 
in this report. 

 

ASSESSMENT OF RISK: Low 

 

 

LEGAL IMPLICATIONS Supplied by: Gaynor Corfe (Shared Legal Service) 

 

S120 Local Government Act 1972 authorises the Council to purchase land by 
agreement for the purpose outlined in this Report.  The heads of terms detailed in the 
report will be incorporated into the legal agreements required in connection with the 

purchase.  There are no further comments from a Legal (property) perspective. 

 

 

FINANCIAL IMPLICATIONS Supplied by: Abbie Murphy, Accountant 

 

Unsupported borrowing – A10122 
 

The acquisition of the former St Joseph’s RC Church and Presbytery, Ordsall will be 
financed from unsupported borrowing which has been approved in the Housing 
Capital Programme.   

 

PROCUREMENT IMPLICATIONS Supplied by: Not applicable 

 

Page 20



 6 

HR IMPLICATIONS Supplied by: Not applicable 

 

 
MEMBER COMMENTS: Members have been made aware of the proposals and 

feedback received has been positive.  

 

CLIMATE CHANGE IMPLICATIONS Supplied by:  Not applicable 

 

OTHER DIRECTORATES CONSULTED: None 

 

CONTACT OFFICER: Angela Martens  TEL NO: 779 6077 

 

WARDS TO WHICH REPORT RELATES: ORDSALL 

 

Page 21



16

3

1

2
12

1

33

2

1

5

29.3m

10

4

16

6

7

CUTTER CLOSE

St Joseph's

M
A

Y
F

LO
W

E
R

 A
V

E
N

U
E

RC Church

18

17

K
N

O
W

S
LE

Y
 A

V
E

N
U

E

Presby

St Joseph's RCPrimary School

PHOEBE STREET

and Childrens Centre

Community Primary School

Primrose Hill

Pond

8
7

28

27

2
1

25

24

23

20

19

10

9

26

15

R
Y

A
LL

 A
V

E
N

U
E

29

9

RYALL AVENUE SOUTH

35

36

23

178

82

23

72

135

21

17

9

39

29

33

14

ST JOSEPH'S DRIVE

15

12

11

27

24

27

BURNETT AVENUE

16

18

20

26

ST JOSEPH'S RC PRIMARY

ORDSALL

Property
Information Section

Salford Civic Centre
Chorley Road

Salford
M27 5AS

Plan Ref:
Scale @ A4:
Date:
OS Map Ref:

1:1250
10/01/2023
SJ8197NE

This map is based upon Ordnance Survey material with the permission of
Ordnance Survey on behalf of the Controller of Her Majesty's Stationery
Office © Crown Copyright. Unauthorised reproduction infringes Crown
copyright and may lead to prosecution or civil proceedings. 100019737 2023

Page 22



a

16

3

1

12

1

33

2

1

5

29.3m

10

4

16

6

St Joseph's

M
A

Y
F

LO
W

E
R

 A
V

E
N

U
E

RC Church

18

17

K
N

O
W

S
LE

Y
 A

V
E

N
U

E

Presby

St Joseph's RCPrimary School

and Childrens Centre

Community Primary School

Primrose Hill

Pond

8
7

28

27

2
1

25

24

23

20

19

10

9

26

TCB

15

LB

11

45

R
Y

A
LL

 A
V

E
N

U
E 42

29

9

RYALL AVENUE SOUTH
E

l S
ub

 S
ta

35

36

23

178

129

82

23

127

135

21

17
9

39

29

19

CRAVEN AVENUE

33

14

8

ST JOSEPH'S DRIVE

15

12

11

27

24

27

N
A

T
IO

N
A

L 
D

R
IV

E

BURNETT AVENUE

16

31

18

20

26
12

ST JOSEPH'S RC PRIMARY

ORDSALL

Property
Information Section

Salford Civic Centre
Chorley Road

Salford
M27 5AS

Plan Ref:
Scale @ A4:
Date:
OS Map Ref:

1:1250
12/01/2023
SJ8197NE

This map is based upon Ordnance Survey material with the permission of
Ordnance Survey on behalf of the Controller of Her Majesty's Stationery
Office © Crown Copyright. Unauthorised reproduction infringes Crown
copyright and may lead to prosecution or civil proceedings. 100019737 2023

Page 23



 1 

Part 1: Open to the Public – Item No. 

 
 

REPORT OF THE STRATEGIC DIRECTOR PLACE 

 
 

TO THE CITY MAYOR’S REGENERATION  
27TH February 2023 

 

TITLE: DISPOSAL OF LAND AT HANOVER COURT, HIGHER BROUGHTON 

 

RECOMMENDATIONS: 

 

The City Mayor is recommended to: 
 

Note the proposals detailed below on the terms as set out in the body of this report 
and on the detailed terms set out in an accompanying Part 2 report for approval 
elsewhere on the agenda. 

 
1. Approve the disposal of land at Hanover Court, Broughton on the terms 

contained in this report. 
 

2. Delegate authority to the Strategic Director of Place and the Section 151 

officer to negotiate and finalise the commercial arrangements and all other 
necessary ancillary agreements to allow the completion of the arrangements 
as detailed in this report 

 
3. Authorise the City Solicitor to progress and complete the associated legal 

formalities and the taking of all steps required to give effect to the above 
recommendations 

 

EXECUTIVE SUMMARY: 

 

Hanover Court, a 16 storey residential tower block, was demolished in 2005 and the 
site has been vacant since this date. 
 

The site is a Housing asset but corporately a decision was taken to hold the land for 
potential future LEA education use. Following a review of Pupil Place Planning data, 

Children’s Services have confirmed that the site is no longer required for locally 
maintained schools. 
 

Beis Yaakov High School (Academy status), which occupies the adjacent site, had 
previously indicated that they were looking to expand the school and expressed an 

interest in acquiring the Hanover Court site to support future school expansion. A 
deliverable proposition did not however come to fruition and the school were advised 
that the Council would be considering alternative options for the site. 

Page 24

Agenda Item 4b



 2 

 
More recently a local Community Group approached the Council regarding a 
proposal to develop the Hanover Court site as a multi-purpose community hub 

together with specialist housing to be built to the specific requirements of Jewish 
residents.  

 
Members were consulted and were supportive of the grant of a six month exclusivity 
period to enable 1:1 negotiations to take place. The exclusivity also provided the 

Community Group time to develop their proposal further. The exclusivity expired in 
February 2022.  

 
Heads of Terms have now been provisionally agreed associated with the disposal to 
the Community Group, by way of 250 year lease, for which approval is now sought. 

 
To ensure transparency and that best value can be demonstrated an independent 

assessment of market value has been undertaken and the Community Group have 
confirmed that the valuation is agreed and Market Value will be paid.  

 
 

BACKGROUND DOCUMENTS: Not applicable 

 

 

KEY DECISION: YES 

 

1.0 BACKGROUND 

 

1.1 Hanover Court, a 16 storey residential tower block, was demolished in 2005 
and the site has been vacant since this date. The site (shown edged red at 

Appendix 1) is recorded as Housing asset on the Council’s Asset Register but 
corporately a decision was taken at the time to hold the land for potential 
future LEA education use, although a formal appropriation was not 

undertaken.  
 

1.2 Children’s Services, following a review of Pupil Place Planning data, have 
confirmed that the site is no longer required for Locally Maintained schools 
and Property Services have been considering options for the site against a 

backdrop of competing demands and council drivers. 
 

1.3 The site clearly has the potential to support housing delivery in the city either 
through Derive, an RSL or private sector developer partner and from a market 
value perspective we consider that residential use of the site would generate 

the highest potential land value. 
 

1.4 Given its location however the site has received attention from local Jewish 
organisations with outline propositions coming forward to meet specific local 
needs.  

 

Page 25



 3 

1.5 Beis Yaakov High School (BYHS) (Academy status), which occupies the 
adjacent site, has previously indicated that they were looking to expand the 
school and expressed an interest in acquiring the Hanover Court site to 

support future school expansion. 
 

1.6 Without prejudice discussions commenced with the school to develop the 
proposition in further detail. A deliverable proposition did not however come to 
fruition and the school were advised in October 2020 that the Council would 

be considering alternative options for the site 
 

1.7 In November 2020 a community group approached the Council regarding a 
proposal to develop the Hanover Court site as a multi-purpose community hub 
(which would work in partnership with the existing Broughton Hub) together 

with specialist housing to be built to the specific requirements of Jewish 
residents. 

 
1.8 The group acknowledge that the Council has been actively supporting the 

needs of the local area but believe that there are gaps that need to be 

addressed. 
 

1.9 Since 2011 it is estimated that the overall Jewish population rose 25% faster 
than the rate of growth seen in the overall population, in Salford the Jewish 
community has increased by 48% over the same period placing significant 

additional demands on local service infrastructure. 
 

1.10 The area of Higher Broughton has a high concentration of the Charedi Jewish 

Community (also referred as strictly observant). The Charedi Community has 
a high number of large families and would prefer to use internal community 

services rather than mainstream providers. This includes retail shops, health 
and medical services, early years’ childcare, youth services and educational 
settings. 

 
1.11 In addition, over 60% of Charedi families in Salford do not drive or have 

access to a car which means they generally rely on accessing services which 
are close to their homes. They also do not have internet access in their 
homes. 

 
1.12 Subject to Planning the Community Group is proposing to develop the site to 

include:  
 

(i) Community Hub, small retail space and shared workspace for new 

business start-ups, office space for Community Groups and a fitness 

centre with separate facilities for men and women. It is proposed that 

Ezra Care will be the anchor tenant of the Community Centre. Ezra 

Care is a local, established and recognised charity, who provide a 

range of support services for people suffering from illness and work to 

relieve pressure on the NHS by supporting patients both at home and 

in hospitals. Ezra Care have the resources, stability and relationships 

Page 26



 4 

in the Community to oversee the varied usages and to ensure the 

viability of the centre. 

  

(ii) Housing, there is a huge need for housing in the local community. 

The proposal would look to develop between 19 – 23 houses (4/5 
bedroom) the properties will be built to the specific requirements of 

Jewish residents such as providing a Kosher kitchen/ sukkah. The 
vast majority of houses will be made available on an affordable basis  
with a mixture of shared ownership and social rent. 

 

1.13 Members were consulted and were supportive of the grant of a six month 
exclusivity period to enable 1:1 negotiations to take place. The exclusivity also 
provided the Community Group time to develop their proposal further. The 

exclusivity expired in February 2022. 
 

1.14 High level discussions have been held with planners associated with the 
proposal and feedback has been positive. 
 

1.15 The Community Group has undertaken extensive, and fully representative, 
community consultation between July – December 2021 which included 

meetings with local Members, members of Salford’s Orthodox Jewish Forum 
and Community Leaders and Groups. Feedback received by the Community 
Group has been overwhelmingly supportive.  

 
2.0      DETAILS 

 
2.1 The Community Group has instructed an architect to develop their proposal 

further however costs are now escalating, and the Community Group have 

requested assurance that, subject to planning and market value being paid, 
that the Council will agree to a disposal. 

 
2.2 To ensure transparency, and that best value can be demonstrated, an 

independent valuation of the Hanover Court site has been undertaken and the 

Community Group have confirmed that the valuation provided is agreed. 
 

2.3 Heads of Terms associated with the disposal of land at Hanover Court have 
been provisionally agreed and can be found at Appendix 2. Full commercial 
terms can be found in the accompanying Part 2 Report. 

 
2.4 From a property perspective, provided Market Value for the land is secured, 

we consider that this is a worthy proposal given the potential support the 
project will provide for the benefit of the local Jewish community. 

 

2.5 Alternative options would of course include the general marketing of the site, 
with all submitted bids being considered on merit, or the direct delivery of 
housing by the Council / Derive.  With regards to the former such an approach 

would clearly enable the city council to fully test the market and demonstrate 
best value/best price obligations have been achieved.  However property 

services are of the view that the provisionally agreed purchase price is fully 

Page 27



 5 

representative of market value and this position has been endorsed through 
independent valuation advice.   

 

2.6 In respect of service delivery, engagement with housing colleagues has 
indicated that the site is not considered suitable due to the specific 

requirements of Jewish residents (size, kosher kitchen, sukkah etc) who would 
be the most likely occupiers of the residential accommodation in this location. 

 
3.0      RECOMMENDATION 

 

The City Mayor is recommended to: 
 
Note the proposals detailed below on the terms as set out in the body of this report 

and on the detailed terms set out in an accompanying Part 2 report for approval 
elsewhere on the agenda. 

 
1. Approve the disposal of land at Hanover Court, Broughton on the terms 

contained in this report. 

 
2. Delegate authority to the Strategic Director of Place and the Section 151 

officer to negotiate and finalise the commercial arrangements and all other 
necessary ancillary agreements to allow the completion of the arrangements 
as detailed in this report 

 
3. Authorise the City Solicitor to progress and complete the associated legal 

formalities and the taking of all steps required to give effect to the above 

recommendations 
 

 
 
KEY COUNCIL POLICIES:  

 

 Health and Social Care 

 Education and skills 

 Housing 

 Social impact 
 

 
 
EQUALITY IMPACT ASSESSMENT AND IMPLICATIONS:  

 
There are no specific equality impact matters following from the proposals contained 

in this report. 

 

ASSESSMENT OF RISK: Low 

 

  

Page 28



 6 

LEGAL IMPLICATIONS Supplied by: Deborah Scott (Shared Legal Service) 

 

Section 123 of the Local Government Act 1972 enshrines the statutory duty on local 

authorities to achieve best value in the context of land disposals. It says that a local 
authority may dispose of land held by it in any manner it wishes providing it is not for a 

consideration 'less than the best that can reasonably be obtained'. It is also 
Government policy that local authorities and other public bodies should dispose of 
surplus land wherever possible.  

   
The onus is on the local authority to be able to demonstrate that in discharging this 

statutory function it has acted properly, rationally and with due regard to its fiduciary 
duty to avoid the risk of challenge and transactions potentially being set aside by the 
Court. This will involve a robust audit trail including valuation evidence.  

   
A council can be found in breach of section 123 if it has “(i) failed to take proper advice; 

(ii) failed to follow proper advice for reasons that cannot be justified; or (iii) has followed 
advice that was so plainly erroneous that in accepting it the local authority must have 
known, or at least ought to have known, that it was acting unreasonably.”  

   
In this instance the site, following a review of Pupil Place Planning data, is no longer 

required for Locally Maintained schools and is accordingly surplus to Council 
requirements.  Whilst the Council has not marketed the site generally, it has considered 
proposals from Beis Yaakov High School (Academy status), which occupies the 

adjacent site, to support future school expansion. A deliverable proposition did not 
however come to fruition and the school were advised that the Council would be 
considering alternative options for the site.  The proposal from the community group to 

develop the Hanover Court site as a multi-purpose community hub (which would work 
in partnership with the existing Broughton Hub) together with specialist housing to be 

built to the specific requirements of Jewish residents has been considered on the basis 
that there is significant local community need for the additional facilities/activities 
proposed.  The social benefits will assist in providing justification for the proposed 

disposal should a challenge materialise and in addition, an independent valuation has 
been undertaken and the Community Group have agreed pay the agreed market value  

for the site. 
 
The Shared Legal Service will work with Council officers in finalising Heads of Terms 

to progress the scheme.   

 

 

FINANCIAL IMPLICATIONS Supplied by: David R Mills 

 

There is an option to tax on the site so VAT at standard rate (20%) would need to be 
applied to any lease or freehold sale of the property/land. 

Page 29



 7 

 

PROCUREMENT IMPLICATIONS Supplied by: Not applicable 

 

HR IMPLICATIONS Supplied by: Not applicable 

 

 
MEMBER COMMENTS:  

 

There has been a significant engagement with local members in relation to this 
proposal that culminated in a meeting of relevant ward members on 8 th November 

2022. 
 

Councillors Leitner, Saunders, Brabiner, Merry and Kelly are supportive of the 
proposals.  
 

Councillor King questioned the need for the gym/recreation elements of the proposal 
given the existing provision within the wider area but was supportive of the other 

aspects of the scheme. 
 
Councillor Walters was not supportive of the proposal. Full details can be found in the 

accompanying Part 2 Report. 
 

 

CLIMATE CHANGE IMPLICATIONS Supplied by:  Not applicable 

 

OTHER DIRECTORATES CONSULTED: None 

 

CONTACT OFFICER: Angela Martens  TEL NO: 779 6077 

 

WARDS TO WHICH REPORT RELATES: Kersal and Broughton Park 

 

Page 30



Unit 8 & 9

Industrial Park
Knoll Street

42
9

392

CURZON ROAD

10

2

1

42
9

b

378
388

42
1

382

20

40
9

13

384

41
1

B
U

R
Y

 N
E

W
 R

O
A

D

8

24

98

88

1 to 19

2 to 22

86

76

MAPLEWOOD COURT

56.3m

Shelter

Newbury Place
Health Centre

C
R

Synagogue

43
5Path (um)

Shelter

69

Beis Yaakov High School

C
liff G

range

57.8m

Issues

416

7

402

400

CLIFF CRESCENT

1
7

12

60.6m

2

43
1

2

Shelter

Car Wash

Brentnall
Community
Primary School

1
3

2

(Sch)

33

Yeshiva L'zeirim

38

44

T
opfields G

rove

Club

11

ESS

HANOVER COURT

BROUGHTON

1.44 Acres

Property
Information Section

Salford Civic Centre
Chorley Road

Salford
M27 5AS

Plan Ref:
Scale @ A4:
Date:
OS Map Ref:

1:1250
30/03/2022
SD8201SE

This map is based upon Ordnance Survey material with the permission of
Ordnance Survey on behalf of the Controller of Her Majesty's Stationery
Office © Crown Copyright. Unauthorised reproduction infringes Crown
copyright and may lead to prosecution or civil proceedings. 100019737 2022

Page 31



APPENDIX 2 

Lessor: 
 

Salford City Council 

Lessee: 

 

Community Group- details TBC 

Description: The Lessor to grant the Lessee a lease of land at Hanover 
Court extending to 1.44 acres and shown edged red on the 
attached plan. 

 

Tenure: 
 

250 years from a date to be agreed.  The City Council’s 
freehold interest is to be transferred to any individual plot 

purchaser at a nil premium as and when a sale completes 
(numbers to be agreed). This will be on the basis that the 
Community Group assign the plot from their leasehold interest, 

leaving the individual owner with an unencumbered freehold 
interest. 

Sub Station: Lease granted subject to: 99 year lease held by Norweb 

(ENWL) wef 1 January 1964 (shown shaded blue on the 
attached plan) 
 

Use: Mixed Use development comprising Community Hub, 

residential dwellings (built to the specific requirements of 

Jewish residents- number of affordable units to be agreed) 

and ancillary works in accordance with Planning  

Planning & 
Statutory 

Consents: 

The Lessee to be responsible for obtaining planning and 

other statutory consents that may be required.  

Alienation: The Lessee shall not assign or sub-let the whole or part of 

the Agreement for Lease. 

The Lessee shall not assign or sub-let the whole of the Lease 

without the prior written consent of the Lessor. Sub-letting of 

part shall not be allowed without prior written consent of the 

Lessor. 

The Lessee shall be permitted to sub-let space within the 

Community Hub to satisfy specific requirements of Jewish 
residents. 
 

Services / 

Condition 

The Lessee to bear all costs associated with service 

connections and diversions, if any.  
 

Termination: Should the Lessee not fulfil any of the obligations under the 

terms of the Lease, the Lease shall be terminated, and the 
Demise handed back to the Lessor. 
 

Page 32



Costs: Each party to bear it’s own legal costs and surveyors fees 

connected with the transaction 

The Lessee to be responsible for all statutory costs and taxes 

that may arise from this transaction. 
 

Completion / 
Timescales: 

i) Agreement for Lease to be exchanged within 4 weeks 

following City Mayor approval 

ii) The Lessee to submit an application for full planning 

consent within 10 weeks from exchange of the 

Agreement for Lease.  

iii) Lease to be completed within 8 weeks following 

receipt of planning consent.  

iv) Development to commence within 3 months following 

completion of the Lease. 

v) Lessee to complete the development within 16 months 

of commencement, with the Lessee acting reasonably. 

 

Charter: The Lessee to sign up to the City Mayor’s Charter for 
Employment Standards. The charter is designed to help raise 
employment standards for employees and businesses across 

the city. 
 

Planning 

Obligations: 

The planning consent to be fully compliant with the Planning 

Obligations SPD (full S.106 obligations).  

Other 

Conditions: 

Any other conditions normally incorporated by the City Council 

in an agreement of this type. 
 

Page 33



PUBLIC INTEREST TEST - CHECKLIST 
Schedule 12A Local Government Act 1972 

 
 
Name of Report:   

St Joseph’s Church and Presbytery, 
Ordsall 

 

 
Committee: 

Property/Regeneration Briefing   
Date  27 February 2023  

 
Category of exemption applied:  Paragraph 3  Information relating to the 

financial or business affairs of any particular person (including the Authority 
holding that information ) 

 
 
Public Interest Test Questionnaire 

This is not a definitive list. However, it does provide a series of questions that you 
should ask yourself when recommending confidentiality. 
 

FACTORS WHICH SUPPORT DISCLOSING INFORMATION 
Will disclosure help people to understand and participate in public 

debate about current issues? 
 
 

No 

Will disclosure help people to understand why the Council has taken 

certain decisions?  
 

 

Yes 

Will disclosure give the public information about the personal 
probity (or otherwise) of elected members or council staff? 
 

 

No 

Will disclosure encourage greater competition and better value for money 
for council taxpayers?  

 
 

No 

Will disclosure allow individuals and companies to understand 

decisions made by the Council that have affected their lives?  
 
 

No 

Is the information about factors that affect public health and public 

safety? (NB you should be careful if considering the release of 
information which might adversely affect public health and safety)   

 
 

No 

Will disclosure reveal incompetent, illegal or unethical decision-

making or examples of malpractice? 
 
 

No 

 

 
 

 

Page 34

Agenda Item 6a



 
 

FACTORS WHICH SUPPORT WITHHOLDING INFORMATION 
Will disclosure damage the Council’s interests without giving the 

public any useful information? 
 

 

Yes 

Will disclosure damage another organisation or person’s interests, 
without giving the public any useful information?  
 

 

Yes 

Will disclosure give an unfair, prejudicial or inaccurate view of a 
situation? 

 
 

No 

Will disclosure prevent the effective delivery of services without giving the 

public useful information?  
 
 

No 

Will disclosure put the health and safety of any group or individuals 

at risk?  
 

 

No 

Is there a clear and coherent reason why the community in general would 
benefit more from information being withheld?  
 

  

Yes 

 

Justification of decision 

(Please provide explicit reasoning) 

 

Disclosure before the completion of the transaction would be inappropriate as it 

would disclose confidential information and is likely to adversely affect the 
financial position of the Council and the interested parties. 

Other documents attached: N/A 

Name and Title: Angela Martens, Asst Principal Development Surveyor 

Date: 16 February 2023 
 

 

Page 35



Document is Restricted

Page 36

By virtue of paragraph(s) 3 of Part 1 of Schedule 12A
of the Local Government Act 1972.



PUBLIC INTEREST TEST - CHECKLIST 
Schedule 12A Local Government Act 1972 

 
 
Name of Report:   

Land at Hanover Court, Broughton 
 

 
Committee: 

Property/Regeneration Briefing   
Date  27 February 2023  

 
Category of exemption applied:  Paragraph 3  Information relating to the 
financial or business affairs of any particular person (including the Authority 

holding that information ) 

 

 
Public Interest Test Questionnaire 

This is not a definitive list. However, it does provide a series of questions that you 

should ask yourself when recommending confidentiality. 
 

FACTORS WHICH SUPPORT DISCLOSING INFORMATION 
Will disclosure help people to understand and participate in public 
debate about current issues? 

 
 

No 

Will disclosure help people to understand why the Council has taken 
certain decisions?  

 
 

Yes 

Will disclosure give the public information about the personal 

probity (or otherwise) of elected members or council staff? 
 
 

No 

Will disclosure encourage greater competition and better value for money 
for council taxpayers?  
 

 

No 

Will disclosure allow individuals and companies to understand 
decisions made by the Council that have affected their lives?  

 
 

No 

Is the information about factors that affect public health and public 
safety? (NB you should be careful if considering the release of 

information which might adversely affect public health and safety)   
 

 

No 

Will disclosure reveal incompetent, illegal or unethical decision-
making or examples of malpractice? 

 
 

No 

 
 

 
 

 

Page 37

Agenda Item 6b



 

FACTORS WHICH SUPPORT WITHHOLDING INFORMATION 
Will disclosure damage the Council’s interests without giving the 
public any useful information? 

 
 

Yes 

Will disclosure damage another organisation or person’s interests, 

without giving the public any useful information?  
 
 

Yes 

Will disclosure give an unfair, prejudicial or inaccurate view of a 

situation? 
 

 

No 

Will disclosure prevent the effective delivery of services without giving the 
public useful information?  

 
 

No 

Will disclosure put the health and safety of any group or individuals 
at risk?  

 
 

No 

Is there a clear and coherent reason why the community in general would 

benefit more from information being withheld?  
 
  

Yes 

 

Justification of decision 

(Please provide explicit reasoning) 

 

Disclosure before the completion of the transaction would be inappropriate as it 
would disclose confidential information and is likely to adversely affect the 

financial position of the Council and the interested parties. 

Other documents attached: N/A 

Name and Title: Angela Martens, Asst Principal Development Surveyor 

Date: 16 February 2023 
 
 

Page 38



Document is Restricted

Page 39

By virtue of paragraph(s) 3 of Part 1 of Schedule 12A
of the Local Government Act 1972.


	Agenda
	3a Peel Park Pavilion, Little Hulton
	03aii Appx A
	03aii Appx B

	4a Former St. Joseph's RC Church and Presbytery, Ordsall (also see item 6a)
	04aii Appx A PART 1
	04aiii Appx B PART 1

	4b Land at Hanover Court, Broughton (also see item 6b)
	04bii Hanover Ct Appx A PART 1
	04biii Appx B PART 1

	6a Former St. Joseph's RC Church and Presbytery, Ordsall
	06a Former St Josephs RC Church and Presbytery

	6b Land at Hanover Court, Broughton
	06b Land at Hanover Court,  Broughton


